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CITY OF STOCKTON PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

FIRE AND SECURITY ALARM INSTALLATION, MONITORING, MAINTENANCE, 
REPAIR, INSPECTION, AND TESTING, Project OM 19-032 

QUESTIONS and ANSWERS 

 

Friday, January 4, 2019  

1. What is the correct bid date on this project?  Invite says 2/6/19 and the RFP 
indicates the 13th? 
 
ANSWER:  The correct bid due date is 2/13/19 at 3pm.   
 

2. What is the engineer’s estimate for this project?  
 
ANSWER:  There is no engineer’s estimate for this project.   
 

Wednesday, January 15, 2019  

3. Does the City of Stockton own all the panels located at these various sites? 
Nothing leased? I see that Bay Alarm has provided a majority of the systems, 
and they often tie customers into long leases so I wanted to confirm with you. I 
want to make sure everything is accounted for on our end for the transition of 
monitoring, testing, and service. Also, does the city have all (if applicable) 
passwords for the panels? 
 
ANSWER:  Some of the equipment associated with sites managed and 
monitored by Bay Alarm is leased from them as a part of the package.  All 
equipment at sites managed and monitored by other vendors is owned by the 
City.  The City has some but not all passwords for the panels.   
 

Monday, January 28, 2019  

4. When bidding on an existing proprietary system, it was stated that we should bid 
as if the existing system were non-proprietary. Is it the City's desire that bidders 
include the cost to replace the existing equipment, or should that cost be 
addressed in a separate proposal at a later date? 
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ANSWER:  For proprietary systems, it was agreed that if no vendor on the job 
walk could take over the current system, they would propose a replacement 
system per the specifications provided by the City.  The cost of the replacement 
system, equipment and installation, should be included in Column A on 
Attachment 1.   
 

5. When bidding on systems that do not currently have a UL certificate, is it the 
City's desire that bidders include the cost to bring the system into UL compliance, 
or is that something to be taken care of at a later date? 
 
ANSWER:  Costs associated with bringing the system into UL compliance will be 
negotiated in the future.  Per section 4.1 the monthly fee should include any UL 
fees so that the City is not receiving a separate invoice for the UL certification.   
 

6. For locations that the City is requesting a new system and service, it was stated 
that the City will be providing specifications for the system equipment and design. 
When can we expect the City to provide this information? 
 
ANSWER:  Responses to written questions will be posted on February 11, 2019 
if not sooner.   
 

Thursday, January 31, 2019  

7. For any locations that have an existing CCTV system in place, could you please 
indicate if it is wireless or wired. If it is wired, what is the City of Stockton’s 
requirement for wiring? If the recording is on-site or off (meaning that a feed goes 
back to City IT or to a 3rd party 24/7 monitoring company). Also, please indicate 
any special caveats to any systems (special settings, requirements & etc.) 
 
ANSWER:  Current CCTV systems are wired with on-site recording.  The City’s 
preference is Cat6 cabling that may need to be plenum type cabling to comply 
with all building codes.   
 

8. For any locations that will be requiring a new CCTV system could you please 
clarify the following; is the system to be wired or wireless and if wired, what type 
of cable will be required. What manufacturer of cameras does the City of 
Stockton standardize on (Bosch, Axis, Pelco & etc.). If no camera manufacturer 
standard then what does the City of Stockton require performance wise from the 
cameras (min resolution, frames per second, infrared, wide dynamic range & 
etc.). If recording is to be on-site, what size of NVR/recorder will the City of 
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Stockton require. Does the City of Stockton require the cameras to have 
analytics (cross-line detection & etc.)? 
 
ANSWER:  New systems should be wired.  The City does not have a preferred 
camera brand at this time and analytics are currently not required.  The City 
desires cameras with sufficient image quality and low light capabilities to be able 
to identify individuals.  Onsite data storage should store six months’ worth of 
security footage. 
 

9. For locations that have conduit, should vendors bid to match the existing conduit, 
price flex conduit when needed. For sites that need all new cabling will the cable 
need to be in conduit and are there any other preferences regarding pathway, 
that the City of Stockton may have? 
 
ANSWER:  Vendors should match existing conduit.  For sites with new cabling all 
wire runs will be hidden as much as possible either above the ceiling or in 
conduit following all building and fire codes.   
 

10. Will the City of Stockton be required to have any of the sites included in this 
bid/contract to be approved by the City of Stockton and/or Authority Having 
Jurisdiction (this question specifically pertains to the Fire Alarm equipment and 
monitoring)? 
 
ANSWER:  Any new fire alarm system and/or an alteration to an existing fire 
alarm system will require plans and permitting from the Stockton Fire Department 
Fire Prevention Division.   
 

11. How are vendors to handle proprietary equipment that cannot be taken over due 
to its proprietary nature? 
 
ANSWER:  For proprietary systems, it was agreed that if no vendor on the job 
walk could take over the current system, they would propose a replacement 
system per the specifications provided by the City.  The cost of the replacement 
system, equipment and installation, should be included in Column A on 
Attachment 1.   
 

12. How are vendors to address equipment seen during the mandatory site walk that 
most likely will not pass UL certification? 
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ANSWER:  Costs associated with bringing the system into UL compliance will be 
negotiated in the future.  Per section 4.1 the monthly fee should include any UL 
fees so that the City is not receiving a separate invoice for the UL certification.   
 

13. Could we obtain copies of recent annual Fire Alarm Inspection records? 
 
ANSWER:  The available inspection reports will be available during negotiations.   
 

14. Do you have the same requirement for Fire Inspection in buildings where there 
are no sprinklers as for buildings with waterflow systems? 
 
ANSWER:  Any City building that solely has a manual and/or automatic fire alarm 
system would only need an annual inspection.   
 

15. Do you have records for changing batteries on the Bay Alarm Video Verification 
systems?  Records of false alarms? 
 
ANSWER:  The City does not have records for changing batteries or false 
alarms.   
 

16. Do you have any other requirements to be included in your maintenance protocol 
addressed in 6.4? 
 
ANSWER:  Per section 6.4 “Proposer shall prepare and enclose a detailed 
written preventative and routine maintenance description in their proposal based 
on the information provided in Attachments 4 and 5, which notes the building 
names and current type of panel in use at each one.  The proposal shall include 
full, itemized descriptions of all the service and routine maintenance to be 
performed and included in the monthly fee in their proposal.” 
 

17. For Delta Water Supply are the any access doors wired to the existing Fire Alarm 
Control Panel? Is the existing Sonitrol Security System for all building or are 
there separate alarm systems for each? 
 
ANSWER:  The access doors are not connected to the FACP.  There is one 
security account for the entire location.   
 

18. Please clarify the meaning of the blue highlighted “New Service Required” for 
NW Reservoir? 
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ANSWER:  Please see Letter of Clarification 1.   
 

19. Please provide the existing fire alarm equipment for Thornton Library? 
 
ANSWER:  There are 10 smoke detectors and 2 manual pull stations.   
 

20. Please provide your specs for new burglar alarm equipment for the entire list of 
Well Sites highlighted blue in Attachment 4? 
 
ANSWER:  Please see Letter of Clarification 1.   
 

21. Please provide your specs for new burglar alarm equipment for 14M Reservoir, 
Linden Library, McKinley Community Center, Water Field Office, and Weston 
Ranch Reservoir highlighted blue in Attachment 4? 
 
ANSWER:  Please see Letter of Clarification 1.   
 

22. Please provide camera counts for Brookings Pool, McKinley Community Center, 
HVAC, Pixie Woods Entry, Pixie Woods Maintenance, and Stockton Airport Bus 
Park Storm Station? 
 
ANSWER:  Please see the updated Attachment 4 included in Letter of 
Clarification 1.   
 

23. Please provide your specs for sites highlighted blue in Attachment 4 “New 
Camera System Requested” at Chavez Library, Linden Library, Margaret Troke 
Library, Maya Angelou Library, Thornton Library including total cameras and 
camera locations per site? 
 
ANSWER:  Please see Attachment 7 included in Letter of Clarification 1.   
 

Monday, February 4, 2019  

24. Under Contractor Qualifications 6:10 
 
It list Bidders Monitoring facility shall be UL listed and certified under UUFX 
Guidelines, however, doesn't state that the Company itself must me UL Certified 
and  listed?   In order for the awarded company to provide a UL Certificate for 
each of the Fire Alarms, that company must be UL Certified. Shouldn't this RFQ 
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add a line item that the actual Alarm Company must be UL Certified, not just the 
Central Station. The City isn't allowing Sub-Contracting of that correct?  
 
Also under same section; Bidder shall possess and maintain throughout the term 
of the contract all permits, licenses and professional credentials necessary to 
supply product and perform services as specified under this RFP. We understand 
it is the awarded contractors responsibility to maintain all their licensing and City 
business license, however, is the City requesting we pay for the individual 
locations Annual Alarm permit(s)? or is that the responsibility of the individual 
location(s)?  Please clarify 
 
ANSWER:  The alarm company (permittee submitting the plans) needs to be UL 
Certified and /or shall prove the system has been designed and installed per 
NFPA 72 Standards.  The alarm company shall be a UL certified monitoring 
station.  Annual Alarm permits will be the responsibility of each location.   
 
 

25. Does the City require the awarded contractor to add/delete/change user codes 
for the Burglar alarm panels? 
 
ANSWER:  Yes.   
 

26. There are few locations that have Proprietary panels installed of which will 
require programming by said proprietary providers only ie Edwards and Notifier. 
Will the City allow this portion of the contract to be sub-contracted out? 
 
ANSWER:  Subcontracting is permitted with subcontracting restrictions being 
located in Section 10 of Attachment 2.  The use of subcontractors will not relieve 
the vendor of the response times in section 6.6.  The intended use of 
subcontractors should be addressed in the Detailed Work Plan section of the 
proposal.     
 

27. Does the City require monthly Open/Close reporting, if so Standard or 
Supervised? Please clarify? 
 
ANSWER:  The City requires Standard Open/Close reporting.   
 

28. Regarding Delta Water Supply location these are Notifier fire alarm panels, rather 
than replacing them, can we hire a Notifier dealer to program them over to our 
dispatch center? or do you want these replaced to non-proprietary panel(s) and 
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equipment? The cost to the city will be substantial for replacement.  Please 
clarify? 
 
ANSWER:  Subcontracting is permitted with subcontracting restrictions being 
located in Section 10 of Attachment 2.  The use of subcontractors will not relieve 
the vendor of the response times in section 6.6.  The intended use of 
subcontractors should be addressed in the Detailed Work Plan section of the 
proposal.     
 

29. In maintenance agreement, are the Burglar Alarm, Fire Alarm and camera 
batteries to be included in this, or is that a separate billable charge? 
 
ANSWER:  The City would like battery replacement to be included in the 
maintenance agreement.   
 
 


